SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
October 27, 2016
9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, October 27, 2016,
in the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20 Street Mall — Third Floor, 344 — 20" Street, Oakland
California.

2

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board Room)
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

[tems placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved,
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a
Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/ CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in advance of
the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-601 1; or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire

in connection with:

1. CALL TO ORDER

A.
B.
C.

Roll Call.

Pledge of Allegiance.

Introduction of Special Guests.

1. Alameda County Sheriff Gregory J. Ahern.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A.

Approval of Minutes of the Meetlng of October 13, 2016.* Board
requested to authorize.

Award of Contract No. 15QG-150, Replace Glass Panels at El Cerrito
Plaza, EI Cerrito Del Norte, Pleasant Hill and Concord Stations
Platforms.* Board requested to authorize.

Award of Invitation for Bid No. 8940A, Escalator Inventory Material
Safety Stock.* Board requested to authorize.

Change Order to Contract No. 20LT-110, Procurement of Train Control
Room Multiplex and Speed Encoding System Equipment, with Alstom
Signaling, Inc., for Extension of Time (C.O. No. 002). Board requested to
authorize.

Compliance Standards for Electric Service under Previously Approved
Electric Power Transmission and Distribution Contracts.* Board
requested to authorize.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT — 15 Minutes

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on
matters under their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for
Public Comment is provided at the end of the Meeting.)

4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS

Director Saltzman, Chairperson

A.

Change Orders to Regular Temporary Help Services Agreements for

Time Extension and Increase Contract Value.*

i.  Agreement No. 6M4191, with Wollborg/Michelson Personnel
Services, Inc.

ii. Agreement No. 6M4197, with SearchPros Staffing, LLC

Board requested to authorize.

Open Data Policy.* Board requested to adopt.

* Attachment available 204



C. Regional Clipper® Card Fare Payment System Update.* For information.

5. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS
Director McPartland, Chairperson

A. Award of Contract No. 03S0-100, Concord Station Plaza Improvements.*
Board requested to authorize.

B. Sole Source Procurement with Simmons Machine Tool Corporation for
the Modification of Five Sets of Wheel Truing Machine Cutter Bodies.*
Board requested to authorize. (TWO-THIRDS VOTE REQUIRED.)

C. Power Purchase Agreements with SolarCity Corporation for Photovoltaic
Installations at the Lafayette and e BART/Antioch Stations.* Board
requested to authorize.

D. Change Order to Contract No. 05EA-110, BART Downtown Berkeley
Plaza Improvement Project, with USS Cal Builders, for South Entrance
Fare Area Re-opening (C.O. No. 4).* Board requested to authorize.

6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Raburn, Chairperson
NO ITEMS.

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Review of the Draft Agenda for the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Board
Meeting of November 16, 2016.* For information.

B. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.

8. CONTROLLER/TREASURER’S REPORT

A. Quarterly Report of the Controller/Treasurer for the Period Ending
June 30, 2016.* For information.

9. BOARD MATTERS

A. Board Member Reports.
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.)

B. Roll Call for Introductions.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.)

C. In Memoriam.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

* Attachment available 3of4



10. PUBLIC COMMENT

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on
matters under their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.) '

11.  CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS:

Designated representatives:

Employee Organizations:

Government Code Section:

12. OPEN SESSION

* Attachment available

Grace Crunican, General Manager; Carter Mau, Assistant

General Manager, Administration and Budget; and Carol Isen

Chief Employee Relations Officer

(I) Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555;

(2) American Federation of State, County and Municipal
Employees, Local 3993;

(3) BART Police Officers Association;

(4) BART Police Managers Association;

(5) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021; and

(6) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021,
BART Professional Chapter

(7) Unrepresented employees (Positions: all)

54957.6

4 of 4

9



DRAFT

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,773rd Meeting
October 13, 2016
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held October 13, 2016, convening at 9:04 a.m.
in the Board Room, 344 20" Street, Oakland, California. President Radulovich presided;

Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Josefowitz, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and
Radulovich.

Absent:  Director Keller. Director Blalock entered the Meeting later.
Director Blalock entered the Meeting.
Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:
1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of September 22, 2016.
2. Updates to Title VI Major Service Change Policy.
3. Audit of Directors’ Use of District Property for Fiscal Year 2016.

4. Award of Contract No. 15TK-190, for Station Agent’s Booth Dutch Doors
and Hardened Polycarbonate and Laminated Security Glass, Phase II.

5. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9013, Interlocking Track Components.
6. Lease of Warehouse Space at 31775 Hayman Street, Hayward.
7. Sale of Low Carbon Fuel Standard Credits.
8. Appointment of BART Police Citizen Review Board Member.
Director Saltzman requested that Item 2-C, Audit of Directors’ Use of District Property for
Fiscal Year 2016, and Item 2-H, Appointment of BART Police Citizen Review Board Member,

be removed from Consent Calendar.

Director Mallett requested that Item 2-G, Sale of Low Carbon Fuel Standard Credits, be removed
from Consent Calendar.

Clarence Fischer addressed the Board.



DRAFT

Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit. Director Blalock seconded the motions,
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —8: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Mallett,
McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Keller.

1. That the Minutes of the Meeting of September 22, 2016, be approved.

2. Adoption of the amended District Major Service Change Policy. (The
Policy is attached and hereby made a part of these Minutes.)

3. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 15TK-190
to Bullet Guard Corporation, for the Bid Price of $1,256,440.00, pursuant
to notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to the
District’s protest procedures.

4. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid
No. 9013, for the procurement of Interlocking Track Components, to
Voestalpine Nortrak, of Cheyenne, Wyoming, in the amount of
$153,397.20, including applicable sales taxes, pursuant to notification to
be issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance with the
District’s protest procedures and the Federal Transit Administration’s
requirements related to protest procedures.

(The foregoing motion was made on the basis of analysis by the staff and
certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funds are available for this

purpose.)

5. That the General Manager or her designee be authorized to execute a lease
agreement, with L.A. Specialty Produce Co., for approximately 75,328
square feet of warehouse space at 31775 Hayman Street, Hayward,
California, for a three year term, for a total lease amount not to exceed
$2,161,915.00.

President Radulovich brought the matter of Audit of Directors’ Use of District Property for
Fiscal Year 2016 before the Board. The item was briefly discussed. Director Saltzman moved
that the Board accept the Audit report. Director Murray seconded the motion, which carried by
unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Mallett, McPartland,
Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Keller.

President Radulovich brought the matter of Sale of Low Carbon Fuel Standard Credits before the
Board. Director Mallett requested additional language be incorporated into the motion, and
moved the that the General Manager or her designee be authorized to sell Low Carbon Fuel
Standard credits on behalf of the District, with no use of revenues from such sales to occur prior
to allocation direction from the Board of Directors. Director Saltzman seconded the motion,
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —8: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Mallett,
McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Keller.

President Radulovich brought the matter of Appointment of BART Police Citizen Review Board
Member before the Board. The item was briefly discussed. Director McPartland moved that the

D



DRAFT

Board ratify the appointment of Robert Maginnis to the BART Police Citizen Review Board, to
fill the vacancy that exists in the seat representing BART District 5, with a term that expires on
June 30, 2018. Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic
vote. Ayes— 8: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman,
and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Keller.

President Radulovich called for Public Comment. The following individuals addressed the
Board.

Randall Glock

Clarence Fischer

Director Saltzman, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Fiscal
Year 2016 Year-End Budget Revision before the Board. Mr. Robert Umbreit, Department
Manager, Budget Department, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Murray
moved adoption of Resolution No. 5329, In the Matter of Amending Resolution No. 5296
regarding Fiscal Year 2016 Annual Budget. Director Blalock seconded the motion, which
carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Mallett,
McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Keller.

Director Saltzman brought the matter of Open Data Policy before the Board. Mr. Timothy
Moore, Supervisor, Business Systems Operations, presented the item. The item was discussed.

Director McPartland, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the
matter of Change Order to Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB, with Manson Construction Co.
Inc., for Added Bolts at End Plate Splice (C.O. No. 39), before the Board.

Directors Raburn and Radulovich exited the Meeting.

Mr. Thomas Horton, Group Manager, Earthquake Safety Program, presented the item. Director
Blalock moved that the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 39, Added
Bolts at End Plate Splice, in the not-to-exceed amount of $512,000.00, to Contract No. 79HM-
120, SFTS MB, with Manson Construction Company, Inc. Director Murray seconded the
motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —6: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz,
Mallett, McPartland, Murray, and Saltzman. Noes - 0. Absent —3: Directors Keller, Raburn,
and Radulovich.

Director McPartland brought the matter of Change Order to Power Purchase Agreement at Warm
Springs Station, with SolarCity, for Electric Vehicle Charging Stations (C.O. No. 1), before the
Board.

Director Raburn re-entered the Meeting.

Ms. Holly Gordon, Sustainability Group Manager, presented the item.

President Radulovich re-entered the Meeting.

Director Blalock moved that the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 1,
Electric Vehicle Charging Stations, in an amount not to exceed $578,985.00, with SolarCity.

3-



DRAFT

Director Murray seconded the motion. The item was discussed. The motion carried by
unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Mallett, McPartland,
Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Keller.

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Committee, brought the matter of Amendment to Late Night Bus Core Service Agreement before
the Board. Ms. Mariana Parreiras, Access Coordinator, Transit & Shuttles, presented the item.
Clarence Fischer addressed the Board.

The item was discussed. Director Saltzman moved that the General Manager or her designee be
authorized to execute an amendment to the Agreement between Alameda Contra Costa Transit
District and the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District in Connection with the Late
Night Bus Core Service Project. Director Blalock seconded the motion. Discussion continued.
The motion carried by electronic vote. Ayes — 7: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, McPartland,
Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Abstain — 1: Director Mallett.

Absent - 1: Director Keller.

Director Raburn brought the matter of 2016 Legislative Update before the Board. Mr. Roddrick
Lee, Department Manager, Government and Community Relations; Mr. Paul Fadelli, Legislative
Officer; Ms. Amanda Cruz, Senior Government & Community Relations Representative;

Mr. Tim Schott, Schott & Lites Advocates Inc.; Mr. Jim Lites, Schott & Lites; and Mr. James
Copeland, CJ Lake, LLC, presented the item. The item was discussed.

President Radulovich called for the General Manager’s Report. General Manager Grace

Crunican reported on the District’s participation in the Rail~Volution conference earlier in the
week, and she reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had participated
in, outstanding Roll Call for Introductions items, and reminded the Board of upcoming events.

Mr. Carter Mau, Assistant General Manager, Administration and Budgets, announced the U.S.
Department of Transportation had awarded a Mobility on Demand grant to the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission, the District, and Scoop to set up a real time carpooling program.

President Radulovich called for the Quarterly Report of the Office of the Independent Police
Auditor. Mr. Russell Bloom, Independent Police Auditor, presented the report.

President Radulovich called for Board Member Reports and Roll Call for Introductions.
Director Raburn reported he had attended the Rail~Volution conference.

Director Raburn requested a report on the status and strategy to acquire the Union Pacific
Railroad right of way. Director Josefowitz seconded the request.

Director Raburn requested a report on automatic fare collection modifications currently
underway by Clipper®, including impacts on availability, re-boot time, and types of errors seen

by Station Agents. Director Josefowitz seconded the request.

Director Saltzman reported she had attended the Rail~Volution conference and previewed an
artwork entitled “Light Rail.”

A-



DRAFT

Director Murray reported she had attended the Rail~Volution conference and an event at the
Contra Costa Centre Transit Village.

President Radulovich reported he had attended the Rail~Volution conference.

Director Blalock reported he had attended a South Hayward BART Station Access Authority
meeting, a Livermore extension update meeting, the Alameda County Mayors’ Conference.

Director McPartland reported he had attended the Livermore extension update meeting and a
press conference for the California Early Earthquake Warning System.

Director Mallett announced that he did not agree with the recruitment of an Assistant General
Manager of Human Resources rather than a department manager, as had been authorized in a
previous Board action.

President Radulovich called for In Memoriam, and noted that several Directors had requested the
Meeting be adjourned in honor of Christine Apple, former District Secretary; Phillip O.

Ormsbee, former District Secretary; and Teresa Murphy, former Assistant General Manager,
Administration.

Director McPartland requested the Meeting be adjourned in memory of the two police officers
who had been killed in Palm Springs.

President Radulovich called for Public Comment. No comments were received.
President Radulovich announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 11-A
(Conference with Labor Negotiators) of the regular Meeting agenda, and that the Board would

reconvene in open session at the conclusion of that closed session.

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:20 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 12:31 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Saltzman, and Radulovich.

Absent: Director Keller.

The Board Meeting recessed at 2:11 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 2:12 p.m.

Directors present: President Radulovich.



DRAFT
Absent: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray,
Raburn, and Saltzman.
President Radulovich announced that there were no announcements to be made.

The Meeting was adjourned at 2:13 p.m. in honor of Christine Apple, Phillip O. Ormsbee, Teresa
Murphy, Jose Vega, and Lesley Zerebny.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



MAJOR SERVICE CHANGE POLICY

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Title VI Requirements and Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration
Recipients (October 2012), requires FTA grant recipients to evaluate whether planned “major
service changes” will have a discriminatory impact. Transit operators may establish a guideline
or threshold for what they consider to be a “major service change.” The circular goes on to suggest
a numerical standard, such as “a change which affects 25 percent of the service hours of a route ”
If an operator determines that a planned service change exceeds their threshold, then that service
change must be evaluated for whether it will have a disproportionately high and adverse impact
on minority and low income populations. Such adverse impacts must be justified based on a
“substantial need that is in the public interest” and a demonstration that alternatives would have
more severe adverse effects than the preferred alternatives.

Definitions:
For the purpose of establishing'this threshold, the following definitions shall apply:

“Transit Service” shall mean any regularly scheduled passenger service on BART's fixed
guideway rail systems.

“Transit Line” is defined as a “grade separated right-of-way served by BART train consists.”" |n
BART’s specific case “Transit Line” shall mean any of the following:

Yellow Line:  Pittsburg/Bay Point to San Francisco Airport (SFO)/Millbrae
Blue Line: Dublin/Pleasanton to Daly City

Orange Line: Richmond to Fremont

Green Line:  Fremont to Daly City

Red-Line: Richmond to Milibrae

(see attached map for the locations of these lines)

' Instead of using the bus-based term “route”, BART’s “Major Service Change” Threshold is based on “Transit Lines.”
' 1

Revision: 8/2016



“Major Service Change” Threshold:
“Major Service Change” shall apply to:

(1) New Lines, Extensions, and Stations: the establishment of new Transit Lines, Line
Extensions (involving one or more stations) or Infill Stations, where construction of the
project is approved (including completion of environmental review pursuant to CEQA or
NEPA) subsequent to May 2007; or

(2) Line Length: increases or decreases of more than 25 percent in the length (in revenue
miles) of an existing transit line; or

(3) Service Levels (Amount of Service Operated on a Line): increases or decreases of more
than 25 percent in the annual transit revenue vehicle miles operated on a Transit Line; or

(4) Service Hours (Hours of Operation): increases or decreases of more than 25 percent in
the annual number of service hours scheduled on a Transit Line or at an individual station,
or

(5) Aggregate Changes Across All the Lines on the BART System: annual net increases or
decreases to Line Length, Service Levels, or Service Hours which exceed 20 percent in
aggregate when combined over all the lines on the BART system, or

(6) Cumulative Changes within a Three Year Period: net increases or decreases to Line
Length, annual Service Levels, and annual Service Hours on a Transit Line which exceed
25 percent cumulatively within a three year period.

“Major Service Changes” shall exclude any changes to service which are caused by:

(1) Temporary Services: the discontinuance of a temporary or demonstration service change
which has been in effect for less than s, or

(3) New Line “Break-In” Period: an adjustment to service levels for new Transit Lines which
have been in revenue service for less than 1 year (allowing BART to respond to actual
ridership levels observed on those new transit lines); or

(4) Other Agencies: acts of other governmental agencies; or
(5) Forces of Nature: forces of nature such as earthquakes and wildfires; or

(6) Competing Infrastructure Failures: failures of competing infrastructure like bridges,
tunnels, or highways; or

(7) Overlapping Services: a reduction in transit revenue vehicle miles on one line which is
offset by an increase in transit revenue vehicle miles on the overlapping section of an
alternative line (An overlapping section is where two or more lines share the same track
and stations).

2

Revision: i§/2016



Current BART System Service Map:

o : ' . Pittsburg/
BART Systemn Map e Bay Point @

Piﬁ&&wg;fﬁay Pmﬁ%«&?ﬁ%ﬁéﬁ% Ling Richmond @ y Worth Contoreds
: ’ e Conoo
: Mim%amm»éﬁg at@tgf Line o Martinez {3 fi.
Riclond -Warm Springs! Bl Cerrita det Norie @ / '
South ?wma:% amlm‘m‘— £l Corrito PlazaQ A Concord
" migsf’itsl L 2o
oy il oo M \-North Berkeley @ /. {; %‘g?ﬁf}g%giwm ,
B Richmond-Wiffhrse Line Dowrtewn Berkels /i Freee
WO VN O SUNIAY SERGET X ey A psinut Creck ©
5 Orakland b ! AKI Y }j‘;{;‘j{)}@ e : )
: (mﬁ%mmyiﬁ% it - S“W{M” é&aw;i&ﬁ
m Teansfor Siation Orindady
%&r&ége{ﬁ

Transfer Station Tor Semite 1o
Oakland temational &vfpmt o

e BacArthur O D TRANSIER SONTHEGUND
{3 3&&7{ %rﬁmg O e ' .

toth SHGakiand waen mRassrer GioRTHEOUN

e gg@ﬁg R g%%g:ggg@ 12th st/0akiand City Center
Ermharcadero ., &

Wontgomery S 4

o Poweli 51
Oivic Center/UN Plaza
161 58 Mission

2ath St Mission
Glen Park

EAST BAY

g«m

Lake Merritt

Frultvale @

Cotineum § TRANSFER FOR SERVICE TD OAKLARD WTERNATIONSL Ammony
- San Leandro(d

Bay Fair @ west Dublin/
CastroValley@®  Pleasanton @

! ff%a%imz Park
ODaly City. 4 ‘ Dublin/
o v Hayward € Pleasantong
©colma South Hayward @

: . South %
o B3%an Frandsto Union City )

%«\} San Frandistco

B m?:ematismai A

Fremont @

Millbraeo
PERIMNSULA

Freed s MORFRE Detire § e

D
¥ Warm Springs/
South Fremont

General Description of Service:

The BART system operates peak period, weekday service on five lines, all of which intersect in
the center of the system. Base peak service headways on all lines are currently 15 minutes, with
rush trains inserted between base headways on the Yellow Line during service peaks. Four of
the five lines connect outlying areas with San Francisco, the system’s primary destination, by
traveling under the San Francisco Bay in a two-track tunnel. The fifth (Orange) line provides north-
south service essentially perpendicular to the others. Service is operated 365 days each year. On
weekdays, the first trains are dispatched around 4 AM and the last around midnight, with the last
arrivals around 1:30 AM. This operating policy leaves a window of 3-4 hours each weeknight,
depending on location, in which necessary track and wayside maintenance may be conducted.

3

Revision: 9/2016



Item No.2-B

MAJOR SERVICE CHANGE POLICY

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Title VI Requirements _and Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration
Recipients (October 2012), requires FTA grant recipients to evaluate whether planned “major
service changes” will have a discriminatory impact. Transit operators may establish a guideline
or threshold for what they consider to be a “major service change.” The circular goes on to suggest
a numerical standard, such as “a change which affects 25 percent of the service hours of a route.”
If an operator determines that a planned service change exceeds their threshold, then that service
change must be evaluated for whether it will have a disproportionately high and adverse impact
oh minority and low income populations. Such adverse impacts must be justified based on a
“substantial need that is in the public interest” and a demonstration that alternatives would have
more severe adverse effects than the preferred alternatives.

Definitions:
For the purpose of establishing this threshold, the following definitions shall apply:

“Transit Service” shall mean any regularly scheduled passenger service on BART’s fixed
guideway rail systems.

“Transit Line” is defined as a “grade separated right-of-way served by BART train consists.”! In
BART’s specific case “Transit Line” shall mean any of the following:

Yellow Line:  Pittsburg/Bay Point to San Francisco Airport (SFO)/Millbrae
Blue Line: Dublin/Pleasanton to Daly City

Orange Line: Richmond to Fremont

Green Line:  Fremont to Daly City

Red-Line: Richmond to Millbrae

(see attached map for the locations of these lines)

" Instead of using the bus-based term “route”, BART’s “Major Service Change” Threshold is based on “Transit Lines.”
1

Revision: 9/2016



Current BART System Service Map:

Pitisbury/
BART System Map Bay Poini &

Richmond ©

Pittsburg/Bay Point-5F0/Millbras Line
¢ Dublin/Pleasanton-Daly City Line

/[ MNorth Concordgy
tdartinez

El Cerrite del Norte (2
£l Cerrito Plaza @ Concord @

Marth Berkeley® Pleasant Hill/
\ Contra Costa Centra

Richsnond-Warm Springs!
South Fremont Line

. Warm Springs/South Fremont~
Dal v L
ES AY SERVIE
BEEEE Rid ~pillbrae Line
Y RENBAY SERVICE
national Aisport {DAK)

IR COLBEUA & OANEANG
FIGRALARPORT STA 045
T30 Transfer Station

Transfar Station for Servics to
e Gakland Intamational Airpont
2 BRART Parking

Downtown Berkeley

Walnut Creak 3
Ashby
S Lafayette @
Orinda
Rockridge
MacArthur © nat€0 IRANSFER (SOUTHBOUND)

n

{7
4
A fOalkdand i N SORTHEOLA
OwWest Oakland [l 1ath St/Oalkland nren TRANSFER (NORTHBOLAD)
/1

2th St/0akiand City Center

Lake Merritt @

N

N X
San Leandro®
\\! Bay Fair® West Dublin/

Montgomery 5t

Powell St

Civic Center/UN Plaza
16th St Mission
24th 5t Mdission

Fruitvale

\« CONSE LT T2 TRANSFER FOR SERVICE TO OAKLANG INTERNATIONAL ARPORY

Glen Park « i x?ﬁ C?stre Valley 42 Plegsanton
Balboa Park ng;g@d I . q
GDaly City, Z International Dublin/
( £ Airport {OAK) Hayward © Pleasantono
QCo!ma South Hayward 3
South ‘%‘%‘
35an Francisco ﬁ,& Union City ©
©5an Bruno '5,5 -~ Internationatl Airport {SFO) BN
k D A BON-FRS e 9 o | : &
VIR R RTONEER] Bt s Ve %g Lonna S*T"gﬂ“ “ MK Fremont G
’2’ ilib "% 113a3 g’gg‘tigg‘ »:3;’; e el
Millbrae o cesve s MOMAFRI Befora b g ‘%& R

Warm Springs/
South Fremont

General Description of Service:

The BART system operates peak period, weekday service on five lines, all of which intersect in
the center of the system. Base peak service headways on all lines are currently 15 minutes, with
rush trains inserted between base headways on the Yellow Line during service peaks. Four of
the five lines connect outlying areas with San Francisco, the system’s primary destination, by
traveling under the San Francisco Bay in a two-track tunnel. The fifth (Orange) line provides north-
south service essentially perpendicular to the others. Service is operated 365 days each year. On
weekdays, the first trains are dispatched around 4 AM and the last around midnight, with the last
arrivals around 1:30 AM. This operating policy leaves a window of 3-4 hours each weeknight,
depending on location, in which necessary track and wayside maintenance may be conducted.

3

Revision: 9/2016



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GEN L MANAGER APPROVAL: : GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
{ ~ Approve and forward to October 27,2016 E&O Committee Meeting
oA
DATE: 1042016 O] (9 [/fo [N\ BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes
Originator/Prepared by: H'amed Tafagh&vdi) G&ghera ounsel Controller/Treasurer District Secretary ok BARY
Signature/Date: [Ug[,{
Io/l&//(o [,)11%/9’1 [

TITLE:
Award Commct No. 15QG-150, Replace Glass Panels at El Cerrito Plaza, El Cerrito Del

Norte, Pleasant Hill and Concord Stations Platforms
NARRATIVE :

PURPOSE: To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. 15QG-150, Replace Glass
Panels at El Cerrito Plaza, El Cerrito Del Norte, Pleasant Hill and Concord Stations platforms to R&I Glassworks of
San Francisco, California.

DISCUSSION: The work of this contract consists of providing all labor, equipment, materials, and services required
for removing and replacing the non-tempered glass panels with tempered glass panels at the platform level of El Cerrito
Plaza, El Cerrito Del Norte, Pleasant Hill and Concord Stations. A layer of anti-graffiti film will be applied to new
tempered glass panels. Tempered glass is safer than the existing float glass (non-tempered glass) when broken.

An Advance Notice to Bidders was sent on June 28, 2016 to one-hundred thirty-four (134) prospective Bidders. Plans
were e-mailed to twenty two (22) plan rooms. The Contract was advertised on July 29, 2016. A Pre-Bid Meeting was
held on August 10, 2016 and was attended by three (3) prospective Bidders. Six (6) firms purchased the Contract
Book. No addenda were issued.

The following four (4) Bids were received on August 30, 2016:

No. BIDDER LOCATION , TOTAL BID SMALL
BUSINESS
1 R & I Glassworks San Francisco, CA $179,800.00 Yes
2 T Amarals Done Right Construction | Livermore, CA $183,080.00 Yes
3 Reeds Construction Pinole, CA $185,447.00 Yes
4 ACR Glazing Contractors, Inc. Oakland, CA $248,000.00 Yes
Engineer’s Estimate $114,750

After review by District staff, the Bid submitted by R & I Glassworks (Bidder) has been deemed to be responsive to the
solicitation. Furthermore, a review of this Bidder's license, business experience, and financial capabilities has resulted
in a determination that the Bidder is responsible and that the Bid of $179,800.00 is fair and reasonable.



District staff has determined that this Work is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Section 15301, Existing Facilities, because it
consists of the repair and minor alterations of existing facilities involving no expansion of use.

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability Percentages for this
Contract are 23% for Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs) and 12% for Women Business Enterprises (WBEs). R & |
Glassworks did not meet both the MBE and WBE Availability Percentages; therefore, R & 1 Glassworks was requested
to provide the Office of Civil Rights with supporting documentation to determine if it had discriminated on the basis of
race, national origin, color, gender or ethnicity. Based on the review of the information submitted by R & 1 Glassworks
the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence of discrimination.”

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set a 5% Small Business
Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses certified by the California Department of General Services
(DGS). The lowest responsive Bidder, R & I Glassworks, is a certified Small Business making it eligible for the Prime
Preference. However, it was determined that all bidders were certified by the DGS as Small Businesses thus
application of the Small Business Prime Preference did not alter the award to R & 1 Glassworks.

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding of $179,800 for award of Contract #15QG-150 is included in the total project budget for
FMS #15QG000 — Repair Station Glass Panels SWD. The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are
currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and
is included in totality to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be
expended from a combination of these sources as listed.

As of September 21, 2016 $1,321,905 is available for this project from the following sources:

Fund Fund Description Source Amount

851W FY07-11 Operation Allocation to BART $551,654
Capital

8524 FY12 Operation Allocation to BART $220,000
Capital

8525 FY13 Operation Allocation to BART $320,000
Capital

8526 FY14 Operation Allocation to BART $150,000

| Capital

8530 FY16 Operation Allocation to BART | $80,251
Capital

Total 1,321,905

BART has expended $949,063, committed $119,465 and reserved $1,090 to date for other action. This action will
commit $179,800 leaving an available fund balance of $72,486 in this project. There is no fiscal impact on available
unprogrammed District Reserves

ALTERNATIVE: The Board may elect to reject all Bids and authorize staff to rebid the Work of this Contract. There
is no assurance that new Bids will be lower than the current Bids received. The ensuing delay of this safety related
refurbishing Work could potentially result in costlier repairs.

RECOMMENDATION: Adoption of the following motion.

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 15QG-150, Replace Glass Panels at El Cerrito
Plaza, El Cerrito Del Norte, Pleasant Hill and Concord Stations Platforms to R & I Glassworks of San Francisco,
California for the Bid price of $179,800.00 pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject to
compliance with the District's protest procedures.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT a8 %

G L MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQD:
GJQ (Q@()ﬂ/ £ /(@«V
DATE: 10/7/2016  [p) [‘i [ 4 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No o~

Originator/Prepared by: : Michael Lemon { Controller/Treasurer
\
lf\

%ncean ‘ng?mierr?g E V //7 /iv
Sig“*‘*“"”"ai/ 2ol 10/5//,4 %1 ﬂtf%m i “

IFB 8940A Escalator Inventory Material Safety Stock

TITLE:

NARRATIVE :

PURPOSE:

To request Board authorization to award Invitation for Bid (IFB) No. 8940A to Precision Escalator of Kenilworth,
New Jersey in the amount of $336,646.80 (Includes all taxes) for the purchase of new Westinghouse Escalator
Steps, and to Kone Inc. of Moline, IL., for $1,438,545.30 (includes all taxes) for the purchase of Kone TR escalator
steps, Montgomery escalator steps, Orenstein & Koppel (O&K) escalator steps and O&K escalator step chain.

DISCUSSION:

This IFB is a re-Bid of IFB No. 8940 (in which no bids were received) for the purchase of six (6) different escalator
step models to replace escalator steps throughout the system, and one (1) safety supply stock of O&K escalator step
chains. Awards for this IFB are based on individual line item with the award being made based on each Bid item's
low Bid rather than a single award in the aggregate.

This is a one (1) year estimated quantities Contract. Each of the inventory items listed must be replaced regularly
when worn. Pursuant to the terms of the District’s standard estimated quantities contract, during the term of the
Contract the District is required to purchase a minimum amount of 50 percent of the Contract Bid price from the
Supplier. Upon Board approval of this Contract, the General Manager will also have the authority to purchase up to
150 percent of the Contract bid price, subject to availability of funding.

A notice requesting Bids was advertised on January 15, 2016. Bids were publicly opened on February 9, 2016.
Four (4) Bidders submitted Bids for six (6) of the seven (7) total Bid items. No responsive Bids were submitted for
the Old Fujitec escalator step model. One (1) responsive Bid was submitted for the escalator step chain Bid item.

The Bids received were as follows:
BIDDERS (Price per Unit)

QUANTITY BID ITEMS Precision ECS Kone  Adams

504 : 38-30-80902 Westinghouse  $610 No Bid No Bid No Bid
48N Step

600 38-37-80757 Kone T/RStep No Bid $265 (Non- $800  NoBid

Responsive)

200 38-33-80815 Old Fujitec No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
Step

500 38-30-80898 Montgomery  No Bid No Bid $775 No Bid
Step

300 38-35-80720 O&K Step No Bid No Bid $800 No Bid



200 38-34-80825 New Fujitec No Bid $895 (Non- No Bid No Bid
Step Responsive)

40/25(HDV)  38-35-15516 O&K HDV No Bid $1,896 (Non-  $5,156 No Bid

Responsive)

Independent cost estimate including Bidder Unit Price plus 9.5% sales tax:
Precisioﬁ Escalator: $336,646.80

Kone Inc: $1,438,545.30

Total: $1,775,192.10

ECS, the apparent low Bidder for the Kone T/R step assembly and O&K step chain models, incorrectly identified the
Free On Board (F.O.B.) Point destination on its Bid Form as Broadview, Illinois. ECS also offered alternative “or
equal” products, which Staff determined to be of substandard quality and noncompliant with BART’s technical
specifications. As a result, Staff deemed the three (3) Bids submitted by ECS to be non-responsive.

Staff has determined that Precision Escalator (Precision) the apparent low Bidder for Westinghouse
steps submitted a responsive Bid. Staff also determined that Precision's Bid price for Westinghouse steps is fair and

reasonable based on prior purchase history and Staff's independent cost estimate.

In addition, Staff has determined that Kone Inc., the apparent low Bidder for Kone TR, Montgomery, and O&K
escalator steps, and O&K 25 HDV escalator step chain, submitted responsive Bids. Staff also determined that
Kone's Bid prices for the above items are fair and reasonable based on prior purchase history and the Staff's

independent cost estimate.

The District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to Invitation for Bid. Accordingly,
the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) and Women Business Enterprise (WBE)
Availability Percentages for this Invitation for Bid.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding for this contract in the amount of $1,775,192.10 will initially be funded by the General Fund, Materials &
Supply Inventory build-up account (140-010). Subsequent funding for this contract when the materials are issued to
operations will be provided from the operating budget of the Elevator / Escalator Department. Funding for the out
year portions of the contract will be requested in future Elevator / Escalator Department operating budgets and

expenditures will be subject to future board approval.

ALTERNATIVES:
The alternative is to reject all Bids. District Staff does not believe that re-bidding this Contract would result in more

competitive bids.

RECOMMENDATION:
On the basis of analysis by Staff, and certification by the Controller-Treasurer that funds are available for this

purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt the motion.



MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award IFB No. 8940A, an estimated quantities Contract for escalator
inventory material safety stock to Precision Escalator of Kenilworth, NJ for the amount of $336,646.80 and to Kone
Inc. of Moline IL for the amount of $1,438,545.30, (for a total amount of $1,775,192.10), pursuant to notification to
be issued by the General Manager, and subject to compliance with the District's Protest Procedures.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

MANAG ER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
‘& Approve and Forward to Board of Directors

DATE: 10142016 (D /90 / IZN BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Ongmator/l’rcpared by: Raul Mlllena 6cneral Counsel Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC

‘Dept: Maintenance and Engineering

| w 1@»3 | 1 4 |
:Signature/Dite: 0 ; P . /}9
(/ﬁ%? fﬂ/f/; tafzﬁ /é:ﬂf;? “ ,‘t}i}@f/?[ ] L4 o\ |

TITLE:

Authorlty to xecute a Time Extension Change Order to Contract No. 20LT-110, Procurement of
Train Control Room Multiplex (MUX) and Speed Encoding System Equipment

NARRATIVE :
PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to execute a Change Order to Contract No. 20LT-110,
Procurement of Train Control Room Multiplex (MUX) and Speed Encoding System Equipment, with Alstom
Signaling, Inc. providing a contractual time extension only of six hundred and thirteen (613) Days.

DISCUSSION:

On August 13, 2015, the Board authorized the General Manager to issue a Change Order to, among other
things, add work that was originally listed as Option work. The Change Order was needed due to the fact that
the Options had expired. Staff’s review of the schedule determined that time needed to be added for
performance of the Change Order work. Accordingly, Staff is now seeking authority to issue this Change which
adds six hundred and thirteen (613) Days to perform the primary scope of the Change Order work. Staff also
anticipates that additional time will be needed to perform and complete the scope of the Work. Once the parties
have agreed to the amount of time needed to complete the remaining work, Staff will return to the Board for
approval of the additional extension of time.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This is a no cost, time only change, and there is no fiscal impact.
ALTERNATIVES:

The alternative would be not to issue the Change Order. This would leave the issue of the significant difference
between the Completion date currently established in the Contract and the projected completion date
unresolved. Also, it would be highly infeasible in terms of cost and time to start the procurement process for
new MUX and Speed Encoding system equipment. Furthermore, failure to proceed with this work increases the
risk of the legacy Westinghouse MUX equipment experiencing a system failure that would result in severe
service delays.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion.
“MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 2 to Contract No. 20LT-110, Procurement of
Train Control Room Multiplex (MUX) and Speed Encoding System Equipment, with Alstom Signaling, Inc., to
add six hundred and thirteen (613) Days to perform the primary scope of the Change Order Work.



Compliance Standards for Electric Service Under Previously Approved Electric Power Transmission and Distribution
Contracts

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT .g. %

G AL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
/@ ?%u (gﬁ/»

DATE: 10/14/2016 | Iq /1,(\ BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Nathanael ﬁ'l’(sns

Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary BARC

Dept: Energy Division

i S /ZWV Qo 10
Signatureatens” A y iy i N
’, i w/,'éj///;? /é’ | S(«/fcv 6 g&({ﬁf{fl? . N @G

TITLE:
Compliance Standards for Electric Service Under Previously Approved Electric
Power Transmission and Distribution Contracts

NARRATIVE :
PURPOSE:

To delegate to the General Manager, or her designee, authority to establish and comply
with standards necessary for the District to meet its obligatibns under the California
Independent System Operator (CAISO) tariff, pursuant to the BART/PG&E
Transmission and Distribution Agreements (T&D Agreements) filed on September 23,
2016.

DISCUSSION:

On January 1, 2017, BART will begin receiving electric transmission service from the
California Independent System Operator (CAISO), the organization responsible for
overseeing and operating the electric transmission system in most of California and part
of Nevada. This new service arrangement is a key component of the settlement
agreement and replacement T&D Agreements between BART and PG&E that the
BART Board reviewed and approved on April 28 and May 26 of this year. BART and
PG&E continued to negotiate final language in 2016 and on September 23, 2016 these
T&D Agreements, along with the final settlement, were filed with the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC) and the California Public Utilities Commission
(CPUCQ).



Compliance Standards for Electric Service Under Previously Approved Electric Power Transmission and Distribution
Contracts

As part of receiving CAISO transmission service on January 1, 2017 the District is
required to establish several compliance rules that are outlined in the CAISO tariff,
which will largely mirror those governing current operation under PG&E service, in
order to facilitate a smooth transition. These rules will specify how District vendors
must process meter data for power market settlements, how the District will audit
vendors’ meter reads and meter data processes, how the District implements
compliance reporting procedures to support power grid reliability (Resource Adequacy
Requirements), and other rules related to energy use measurement and communication
and coordination standards with the CAISO. The relevant CAISO Tariff sections
include parts of Sections 4, 10, 11, 24, 25, 36 and 40.

The final settlement between PG&E and BART filed in September 2016 obligates
PG&E to support the District’s efforts to establish and comply with many of these
rules. Additionally, District staff have been working with state agency staff and other
experts who are responsible for these compliance areas at the CAISO and at the

Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) in developing these rules for the District.

The District intends to have appropriate rules in place before the deadlines set

according to CAISO business processes, the first of which is October 31, 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None. The compliance rules are necessary for the District to meet the CAISO tariff and
the PG&E settlement agreement, but will not alter the District’s financial obligations or

revenuces.

ALTERNATIVES:

Do not delegate authority to the General Manager, or her designee, to establish and
comply with CAISO tariff provisions. Without these rules in place on the
recommended schedule, the District risks being out of compliance with the CAISO
tariff, and with the terms of the PG&E settlement agreement. In a worst-case scenario,
without transmission service arrangements in place, the District could be required to

buy electricity from PG&E at full retail rates, and liquidate its energy supply portfolio



Compliance Standards for Electric Service Under Previously Approved Electric Power Transmission and Distribution
Contracts

at prevailing wholesale prices. Adopting such rules late might additionally risk missing
several deadlines for CAISO annual processes, with material cost impacts to the

District.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager, or her designee, is authorized to establish and comply with rules
required under the CAISO tariff in order for the District to begin taking transmission
service as specified in the transmission and distribution agreements between the
District and PG&E which were filed with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

and the California Public Utilities Commission on September 23, 2016.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

L MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

Q ( ) 2 Approve for Board Action
DATE: 10/12/2016 W BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prepared by: Patrice McElroy GeRIeral Counsel Controller/Treasurer District Secretary
Dept: Human Resources \ ]

o | CE T
f/”"/ﬁif/ fé}//{f/jé le)l%//épl /ﬁ iﬁ//zf [ [ ]

Time Extension and Increase of Contract Value to, Agreement # 6M4197 SearchPros Staffing,

LLC. & Agreement #6M4191 Wollborg/Michelson Personnel Services, Inc.
NARRATIVE ;

PURPOSE:

To authorize the General Manager to execute change orders to Agreement No. 6M4197 with SearchPros Staffing, LLC.
and Agreement No. 6M4191 with Wollborg/Michelson Personnel Services, Inc. for temporary help services. This
modification will increase the value of each Agreement from $1,300,000 to $1,600,000 and will extend the termination
date of both Agreements from October 31, 2016 to April 30, 2017.

DISCUSSION:
The Board authorized award of both agreements on August 9, 2012 in an amount not to exceed $1,300,000. The term of
both Agreements is four years, with a termination date of October 31, 2016.

The District utilizes the services of temporary help agencies to provide placement of temporary help employees for
various functions within the District where temporary or intermittent needs exist. In anticipation of the end of the
agreements, staff recently prepared a Request for Proposals (RFP) for these services. Staff added additional features of
services to further increase opportunities for vendors seeking to do business with the District. Extending this agreement
by six months will allow the District to contmue service while we implement the additional services and move forward
with the RFP. 3

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the change order as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The maximum compensation for each of the two regular temporary help services agreements shall not exceed
$1,600,000 each for the extension of the agreements. The expenses for extension of these agreements will be
approximately $600,000 for FY17.

ALTERNATIVES:

Discontinue the use of agency temporary help services.
RECOMMENDATION:

Adoption of the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to execute change orders to Agreement No. 6M4197 with SearchPros Staffing,
LLC. and Agreement No. 6M4191 with Wollborg/Michelson Personnel Services, Inc. to increase the compensation
under each Agreement by $300,000,which would increase the not-to-exceed limit to $1,600,000, and to extend the term
of each Agreement to April 30, 2017.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

WL MANAGER M GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 10/18/2016 0 /Q@ /{b ( > BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Tlmothy Moore y GenerzilyCog:;tnsel Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC

Dept: Office of the CIO | PR - o

o a M/ ) e
Signature/Date: - 1 ’i; !§ 3 r@(}
TD,W [] RIS
TITLE: M 4
Open Data Policy

NARRATIVE :
PURPOSE:

To request that the Board of Directors adopt the Open Data Policy.

DISCUSSION:

This Open Data Policy would create a more formal structure to manage the District's current Open Data
practice, including the creation of a web portal that would act as a "one-stop shop" to house District data
in accessible, machine readable and interoperable formats. BART data would be available license-free
and free of charge. Controls would be established to identify and exclude data sets that might

create privacy, confidentiality, or security risk for the District.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The fiscal impact of the Open Data Policy is estimated to be $250,000 in Fiscal Year 2018, $200,000 in
Fiscal Year 2019 and $150,000 in Fiscal Year 2020. If the Open Data Policy is adopted by the Board,
staff will submit a budget request for consideration in the Fiscal Year 2018 budget

process. Implementation of the Open Data Policy is contingent upon funding availability.

ALTERNATIVES:
Do not adopt the Open Data Policy.

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the Board adopt the Open Data Policy.

MOTION:
The BART Board of Directors hereby adopts the attached Open Data Policy.



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Open Data Policy

Introduction

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (District) is committed to increasing
transparency, accountability, efficiency, public engagement, and supporting technological
innovation and economic growth. The District further recognizes that every citizen has the
right to prompt, efficient service from the District.

In accordance with that commitment, the District's efforts in providing Open Data for
BART transit services, including schedule and real time arrivals, provides a model on which
the District can continue to build.

The District recognizes that access to public information, including access to public
data, promotes a higher level of civic engagement and allows citizens to provide valuable
feedback to District staff and policy makers. One goal of an Open Data policy is to proactively
provide information currently sought through Public Information Act requests, thereby saving
the District time and money.

- In commitment to the spirit of Open Government, the District will consider public
information to be open by default and will proactively publish data and data containing
information, consistent with relevant public records law. Consistent with that commitment
the District recognizes that information technologies, including web-based and other Internet
applications and services, are an essential means for Open Government and good government
generally. The protection of privacy, confidentiality, and security will be maintained as a
paramount priority while also advancing transparency and accountability through Open Data.

Section 1: Definitions

1. “Data” means statistical, factual, quantitative, or qualitative information that is
regularly maintained or created by a District Department or a contractor, vendor or
other entity on behalf of a District Department.

2. “Open Data” means data that is available online, in an open format, with no legal
encumbrances on use or reuse.

3. “Open format” means any widely accepted, nonproprietary, platform-independent,
machine-readable method for formatting data, which permits automated processing of
such data and facilitates search capabilities.

4. “Dataset” means a named collection of related records, with the collection containing
data organized or formatted in a specific or prescribed way, often in tabular form.

5. “Protected information” means any dataset or portion thereof to which a department
may deny access pursuant to California statutes or any other law, rule or regulation or
on the basis that the disclosure may constitute an infringement on a third party's right
to privacy.

6. “Sensitive information” means any data which, if published on the Open Data web



portal, could raise privacy, confidentiality or security concerns or have the potential to
jeopardize public health, safety, or welfare to an extent that is greater than the
potential public benefit of publishing that data.

7. “Publishable data” means data which is not protected or sensitive and which has been
prepared for release on the Open Data web portal.

Section 2: Open Data Initiative

1. Constant with this resolution and the goals specified herein, the District will develop and
implement practices that allow it to:

a.

Release publishable, non-private, District data, making it freely available in open
formats, license free and fully accessible to the broadest range of users;

Publish high quality, updated data with documentation (including metadata and a
summary of the processes that were used to create specific data sets);

Establish and maintain an Open Data web portal that provides a central location for
public review of published District data;

Employ open source software solutions whenever possible and share open source
code in public repositories;

Provide broad disclosure of public information while appropriately safeguarding
protected and sensitive information; and

Encourage innovative uses of the District’s publishable data by agencies, the public,
and other partners.

2. The development and implementation of these practices shall be the responsibility of the
Office of the Chief Information Officer.

3. This resolution and the goals specified herein shall apply to any District department, office,
administrative unit, board, advisory committee and any other divisions of the District
(“department”).

Section 3: Governance

1. Implementation of this Open Data Initiative Resolution will be overseen by the Office of
the Chief Information Officer.

2. The Office of the Chief Information Officer shall work with all departments within the
District to:

a.

Identify a lead Open Data coordinator within each department. The coordinator
will be responsible for the oversight and management of that department's

~ participation in the Open Data initiative, including requests for budget or resources

to support that participation. Each coordinator’s contact information and area of
responsibility shall be published on the Open Data web portal;

Develop and publish, on the Open Data web portal, a comprehensive inventory of
datasets held by each District Department and keep the inventory up to date,
consistent with the requirements of SB 272, Section 6270.5 of the California Public
Records Act;

Develop, implement and publish, on the Open Data web portal, a process for
determining whether information is private, sensitive or otherwise protected and



establish whether the information may be published; the relative level of risk and
public benefit associated with potentially sensitive, non-protected information so
as to make a determination about whether and how to publish it;

d. Work with the Office of the General Counsel to determine if the information
identified by the departments may, legally, be made publically available;

e. Develop, implement and publish, on the Open Data web portal, a process for
prioritizing the release of datasets to the Open Data web portal, including historic
and archival material, which takes into account new and existing signals of interest
from the public (such as the frequency of Public Information Act requests), the
District's programmatic priorities, existing and future opportunities for data use in
the public interest and in the interest of the District’s internal stakeholders,
contractors and external partners, and cost;

f. Establish, implement and publish, on the Open Data web portal, processes for
publishing datasets to the Open Data web portal, including processes for ensuring
that datasets are reviewed for use-appropriate formats, quality, timeliness, and
exclusion of protected and sensitive information;

g. Work with other local governments and public agencies, and through standards
bodies and other consensus groups, to identify and use the same unique identifiers
across all data sets;

h. Optimize the quality and timeliness of data collection to avoid the inefficiencies
created by paper-based systems and allow structured data to be created in the
natural course of business;

i. Develop, publish and oversee a routinely updated, public timeline for new dataset
publication; and

j- Ensure that published datasets are available for bulk download or via APIs
(Application Programming Interfaces) to enable search and retrieval.

~ k. Encourage interpretations of published data, including data visualizations and
interactive tools, to facilitate public involvement and transparency.

3. To ensure that the commitments and goals as set forth in this Resolution are met, the
Office of the Chief Information Officer will actively encourage department and public
participation by providing regular opportunities for feedback and collaboration.

Section 4: Central Online Location for Published Data

1. The District will endeavor to create and maintain a publicly available location on the
District’s website or in another suitable online location where the District’s published
data will be available for download.

2. Datasets published on the Open Data web portal shall be placed into the public domain.

Section 5: Open Data Report and Review
1. Within one year of the effective date of this Resolution, and once a year thereafter, the

Office of the Chief Information Officer shall submit to the District Board of Directors an
annual Open Data Report. The report shall include an assessment of progress towards



achievement of the goals of this Resolution, a list of datasets currently available on the
Open Data web portal, and a description and publication timeline for datasets envisioned to
be published on the portal in the following year.

During the review and reporting period, the Office of the Chief Information Officer should
also make suggestions for improving the District’s Open Data management processes in
order to ensure that the District continues to move towards the achievement of the
District's commitment.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Memorandum

TO: Board of Directors DATE: October 21,2016

FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT:  Administration Item # 4.C: Clipper Update — For Information

At the Board of Directors meeting on October 27, 2016, staff will report on the status of the current
Clipper® system as well as provide an update on the planning efforts underway in support of the Next
Generation Clipper® System (C2).

The presentation that will be presented at the Board meeting is attached. Please contact Mr. Carter Mau,

Assistant General Manager, Office of Administration and Budget should you have any questions or
concerns in advance of the meeting. Mr. Mau can be reached at 510-464-6194.

ea b

General Manager

:xl -

Attachment

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

E L MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

/ N y 1 Approve and Forward to E&O Committee
..

DATE: 9/1222016  [£/19 //é (N BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prepared by:‘Ken:y Morgan Controller/Treasurer District Seeretary BAR
Dept: PD&C § < i
Signature/Date: 4 %\ y/\ N / i 7.L§ rjv ﬁiifg} ”j

10/16//6 1 1 | [ ] []

TITLE: / { )

{
Award of Contract No. 03S0-100, Construction of BART Concord Station Plaza Improvement Project
NARRATIVE :

PURPOSE: To obtain Board authorization for the Award of Contract No. 03S0-100: BART Concord Station Plaza
Improvement Project, to Gordon N. Ball Inc. of Alamo, CA.

DISCUSSION: This Project is for the modification and improvement of exterior public spaces surrounding the
Concord BART Station entrance to provide a more place-specific design that will improve the safety, livability, and
multimodal access of the Station, as well as connections between the Station and the surrounding neighborhoods.
The areas to be improved include the existing plaza and pedestrian paseo west of the Station, the Station intermodal
area, the Station entrance and ticket vending area, the pedestrian connection to the east of the Station entrance, and
other strategic pedestrian improvements for the surrounding parking areas. This Project includes three (3) Bid
Options; a new trash enclosure, demolition of the existing station agent break room as well as construction of a new
break room and a new retaining wall (in preparation for a future bike station).

An Advanced Notice to Bidders was sent on June 16, 2016 to sixty-three (63) prospective A-licensed contractors.
The Contract was advertised on June 21, 2016. Fourteen (14) plan holders purchased plans for this Contract. A
Pre-Bid Meeting was held on July 6, 2016 with seven (7) potential Bidders in attendance. Three (3) Addenda to
the Contract were issued.

Two (2) bids were publicly opened on August 23, 2016. The Instructions to Bidders specified that Bids will be evaluated on the
basis of the Total Base Bid Price. Gordon N. Ball, Inc. (Gordon Ball) submitted the apparent low Total Base Bid of $3,170,000.

BIDDER LOCATION TOTAL BASE BID OPTION(1) OPTION@) QOPTIONQR)

Gordon N. Ball Inc. Alamo, CA $3,170,000 $ 268,000 $400,000 $200,000

Thompson Builders Corp Novato, CA $3,501,000 $147,000 $225,00 $79,000
ineer” imate: $3,367,939 $261,000 $438,059 $120,934

After review, staff determined that the apparent low Bid submitted by Gordon Ball was responsive to the
solicitation. Staff has also determined that Gordon Ball's Bid price is fair and reasonable based on staff's
independent cost estimate. A review of the Gordon Ball’s business experience and financial capabilities has
resulted in a determination that Gordon Ball is a responsible Bidder.

Since this Project involves the modernization of an existing mass transit station, the Project is statutorily exempt from the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), as provided in CEQA Guidelines Sections 15275(a).

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability Percentages for this
Contract are 23% for Minority Business Enterprises (“MBEs”) and 12% for Women Business Enterprises
(“WBEs”). The Bidder, Gordon Ball Inc., committed to 16.8% MBE and 12.5% WBE participation. The Bidder,



Gordon N. Ball, Inc., did not meet the MBE Availability Percentage; therefore, the Bidder was requested to provide
the Office of Civil Rights with supporting documentation to determine if it discriminated on the basis of race,
national origin, color, or ethnicity. Based on the review of the information submitted by the Bidder, Gordon N,
Ball, Inc., the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence of discrimination.

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set a 5% Small Business
Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses certified by the California Department of General
Services. The lowest responsive Bidder, Gordon N. Ball, Inc., is not a certified Small Business and, therefore, is
not eligible for the 5% Small Business Prime Preference.

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding of $3,170,000 for the award of Contract No. 0380-100 is included in the total Project budget for
FMS #0350001 ~ Concord Intermodal Improvement. The Office of Controllet/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently
available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced Project and is included in totality
to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from a combination of
these sources as listed.

As of September 9, 2016, $6,505,000 is available for this Project from the following sources:

Fund Number |Fund Description Source Amount

535A FY10-11 Prop 1B - PTMISEA State 450,000
535B FY14-15 Prop 1B - PTMISEA State 1,100,000
5358 Prop 1B State Bond Fund State 355,000
6048 CCTA Resol 16-16-P Measure J Regional 4,500,000
8524 FY12 Operating Allocation to Capital  |BART 100,000
Total 6,505,000

BART has expended $921,582, committed $1,100,933, and reserved $0 to-date for other action. This action will
commit $3,170,000 leaving an available fund balance of $1,312,485 in this Project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE: The Board may elect to reject all Bids and authorize staff to re-advertise the Contract. By re-
advertising the Contract, this would result in additional cost and time to the District with no assurance that
rebidding will result in lower Bid prices.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 0380-100, Construction of BART Concord
Station Plaza Improvements to Gordon N. Ball, Inc. for the Bid price of $3,170,000.00 pursuant to notification to be
issued by the General Manager, and subject to the District's protest procedures.

The General Manager is further authorized to exercise any one or all Options subject to funding availability.



b EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 8 %
NERAL MANAGER APPROVAL ; GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
/Q[’/Q &J‘}(},{Lg
DATE: 10/11/2016 /D) [7 /,(0( \ / BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by Cristiano Torresi Controller/Treasurer District Secretary

ept: Rolling Stock and Shops |
D. ‘ P «_ " 5 Af/ﬂfﬁﬁ
Slgnat“:;:‘;’j?/)%//é L l@"%ﬁl(i [ ] .

TITLE:
Professional Services Agreement with Simmons Machine Tool Corporation (SMTC)
NARRATIVE :

PURPOSE: To obtain Board Authorization, for the General Manager to enter into a Professional
Services Agreement with Simmons Machine Tool Corporation (SMTC) of Albany, NY in an amount
not to exceed $259,000, including tax and shipping, for the modification of five (5) sets of wheel trumg

"~ machine cutter bodies.

DISCUSSION: The District is transitioning the existing fleet (A2, B2, C1, and C2) from a cylindrical
wheel profile to the new BT-3 modified tapered wheel profile intended to provide a quieter ride for
passengers. The new wheel profile has been installed on the Fleet of the Future pilot cars currently
being tested on the Hayward Test Track. The wheel surfaces of this new wheel profile will be
maintained to precise specifications using the District’s computerized wheel truing machines currently

installed at the Hayward, Richmond, and Daly City shops.

The District purchased and installed the three (3) wheel truing machines more than 20 years ago from
Simmons Machine Tool Corporation (SMTC). These machines are highly complex underfloor pit-
mounted milling machines capable of simultaneously re-profiling (or truing) both wheels of a railcar
wheel set. For each machine, the District has two sets of cutter body assemblies to minimize machine

downtime due to routine cutter body maintenance.

In order for the wheel truing machines to shape and maintain the new wheel profile, the District must
modify the six (6) sets of cutter body assemblies. The modification for one set of these cutter body
assemblies has already been completed. This Professional Services Agreement will provide for the

modifications required to the remaining five (5) sets of cutter body assemblies.

As the designer and builder of the District's wheel truing machines, SMTC has unique knowledge of all
parts and maintenance requirements for these machines. This makes SMTC uniquely capable to
perform the cutter body assembly modifications to the District Wheel Truing machines. In addition,

other manufacturers would not have access to the original drawings or proprietary information required




to duplicate the stringent specifications and performance requirements for the District's wheel truing
machines. Therefore, District staff determined that SMTC is the only qualified firm that can perform
the services needed to modify the five (5) sets of wheel truing machine cutter bodies. SMTC submitted
a quote to modify the five Cutter Bodies for $259,000, which staff has determined to be fair and

reasonable based on prior procurements with SMTC.

The District’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to Sole Source
Contracts. Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) and
Women Business Enterprise (WBE) Availability Percentages for this Contract.

The office of the General Counsel will approve the contract as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding of $259,000 for this agreement with Simmons Machine Tool Corporation
(SMTC) Requisition No.13493 will come from capital account Tools and Equipment Account No.
79NBO001. The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project, and is included in its
“totality totrack funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be
expended from the sources listed. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are
currently available to meet this obligation. As of October 11, 2016, $1,224,002 is available for this

project from the following fund sources:

Fund | Description Amount

8529  FY 2015 Operating Capital Allocation 231,002

8530  FY16 Operating Capital Allocation 493,000

8531 FY 2017 Operating Capital Allocation 500,000
Total 1,224,002

BART has expended $273,979 and committed $389,751 to date for other actions. This action will

commit an additional $259,000 leaving an uncommitted balance of $301,272 in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE: There are no other firms available that can modify the SMTC cutter bodies.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.



MOTION: The Board authorizes the General Manager to enter into a Professional Services
Agreement with Simmons Machine Tool Corporation of Albany, NY for the modification of the
District's SMTC wheel truing machine cutter bodies in an amount not to exceed $259,000 (shipping and

tax included).



Attachment 1: Simmons Machine Tool Corporation EDD

Simmons Cutter Body in the center of the picture:




Approval of Power Purchase Agreements and Photovoltaic Installations at the Lafayette and Antioch Stations

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT g %
RAL MANAGER APPROVA GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: e
ATE 10/17/2016 o (7 [(, BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Dept: Energy Division

" é:/f?/i \Q@/é /:? W/// ’{f(}

Signature/Da
TITLEY T

Approval of Power Purchase Agreements and Photovoltaic Installations at the
Lafayette and Antioch Stations

Originator/Prepared by: Nathanael fiksis , G{’ner | Counsel Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary

NARRATIVE :
PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization to enter into two 20-year Power Purchase Agreements
(“PPAs”) with SolarCity Corporation for its design, installation, operation, and
maintenance of solar photovoltaic systems (“PV System(s)”) at the Lafayette BART
Station and at the new Antioch eBART Station and for the District’s purchase from

SolarCity Corporation of all solar power generated by those two PV systems.

DISCUSSION:

On December 4, 2014, as a result of a competitive Request for Qualifications process
and recommendation by staff, the Board unanimously gave approval for the District to
work with SolarCity Corporation (“SolarCity”’) on development of individual site-
specific agreements for PV Systems at up to five locations on BART’s system. The
first of these, the Warm Springs Station PV project, was previously approved by the
BART Board. Construction recently finished at Warm Springs ahead of station
opening, and BART received final interconnection approval from PG&E on September
30, 2016.



Approval of Power Purchase Agreements and Photovoltaic Installations at the Lafayette and Antioch Stations

Since the successful completion of the PV System at the Warm Springs/South Fremont
Station, District staff have focused on and reached agreement with SolarCity on terms
for two more PPAs, one at Lafayette and one at Antioch, as well as the related Permits
to Enter (PTEs) for these two locations. The PPAs and PTEs for each location are

similar, and the key provisions are as follows:

- SolarCity will install, operate, and maintain PV Systems at the respective Stations
for a 20-year term, with a BART option to renew for two (2) additional five (5)
year periods. The PV Systems are each just under I MW and will be located on
parking lot canopies at the two locations. These will be the largest PV Systems of
their kind located on District property and will produce power in excess of each
Station’s needs. Under the recently-negotiated electricity distribution agreement
with PG&E, excess power from these projects may be used by BART elsewhere,
without incurring delivery charges.

- The District may purchase one or both of the PV Systems, subject to Board
approval, at the end of years six (6), eight (8), ten (10), and fifteen (15), for the

- greater of either the then current Fair Market Value of the respective PV System or
the pre-specified contract Termination Value in the PPA. The PV System may also
be purchased in year 20 for Fair Market Value. If the District opts not to purchase
the PV System, SolarCity must remove the PV System, at no cost to the District, at
the termination of the PPA.

- The PPA for the Lafayette Station requires that SolarCity pay prevailing wages for
all work related to the construction or maintenance of the PV System.

- The PPA for the Antioch Station requires SolarCity to abide by the Site Project
Stabilization Agreement (PSA) governing overall construction at the Station,
including mandates for local hiring.

- SolarCity’s terms of access to and use of BART property are subject to BART’s
standard Permit to Enter conditions during the PPA term.

- If authorized, construction of the PV Systems at Lafayette will be completed by
April 1, 2017, and the PV System at Antioch will be completed by September 1,
2017, unless otherwise extended by BART. The PV System at Lafayette would be
operational by July 1, 2017 and the PV System at Antioch would be operational by
October 1, 2017.

- Inclusive in the pricing is the District’s right to own renewable energy credits
(RECs) that may accrue as a result of solar power generated by the PV System.
Such a right has both tangible and intangible benefits. Ownership of the RECs
would advance the District’s environmental and green energy goals and allow the
District to claim that the Lafayette and Antioch Stations are powered by renewable
energy.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the PPA and the PTE agreements as to

form.



Approval of Power Purchase Agreements and Photovoltaic Installations at the Lafayette and Antioch Stations

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of the projects will be incurred over the 20-year terms of the PPAs and will be
paid for from the District energy operating budget. BART has negotiated a favorable
arrangement whereby it receives a lower overall project cost by including an upfront
payment in Year 1 and a price de-escalator over the term of the PPAs (the prices in the

earlier years are higher than the prices towards the end of the contract).

The proposed price of the Lafayette project in Year 1 will be $.135/kWh with a
$500,000 one-time pre-payment, with the price de-escalating to $.102/kWh in Year 20.
The total cost of the Lafayette project under the PPA will be approximately $3,850,000.

The proposed price of the Antioch project in Year 1 will be $.131/kWh with a
$500,000 one-time pre-payment, with the price de-escalating to $.099/kWh in Year 20.
The total cost of the Antioch project under the PPA will be approximately $3,751,000.

$/kWh by Year
Year 1 | Year 5 | Year 10 | Year 15 | Year 20 | Total Contract Cost
Lafayette | 0.135| 0.127} 0.118| 0.110]| 0.102 $3,850,152
eBART 0.131} 0.123| 0.115| 0.106| 0.099 $3,750,888

A de-escalated pricing structure is complementary to budget projections for the rest of
the District’s portfolio, and wholesale power cost inflation expected over time, and

supports stable energy costs over the 20 year terms of the PPAs.

ALTERNATIVES:

Not entering into a PPA with SolarCity at this time. This would delay the District’s
progress in transitioning to a renewable power portfolio with two large PV Systems at
sites that have undergone significant design preparation and interconnection application
processing with PG&E. In the case of the new Antioch eBART Station, a delay in

construction of the PV System until after station opening could increase costs by



Approval of Power Purchase Agreements and Photovoltaic Installations at the Lafayette and Antioch Stations

missing the opportunity to coordinate with the rest of the station construction process
and would likely cause avoidable revenue losses by requiring a closure of a parking lot

area when construction overlapped with station revenue service.

RECOMMENDATION:

Adoption of the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager, or her designee, is authorized to execute Power Purchase
Agreements for 20 years and, optionally, to renew for up to 2 additional S-year terms,
with SolarCity Corporation for its design, installation, operation, and maintenance of,
and the purchase of all electricity output from, one or both of the solar photovoltaic

(PV) systems at the Lafayette Station and at the new Antioch eBART Station.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

8
®
£

GENERAL MANAGP R APPROVAI - GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
~ 7 / Execute Change Order No. 4, South Entrance Fare Area Re-Opening, for Contract
7, ) No. 05EA-110
DATE: 10/6/2016 [O/[ 4/[é \ BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prepared by: écott Smlth era ounsel Controller/Treasurer District Secretary
Dept: District Architect E {
1 )

Al PO b

Signature/Date: b i / "({
o it i
AL O/fﬂ//es BT L
7 + 4

TITLE:
Contract No. 05SEA-110, BART Downtown Berkeley Plaza Improvement Project, Change

Order No. 4, South Entrance Fare Area Re-opening
NARRATIVE :

PURPOSE: To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 4,
South Entrance Fare Area Re-Opening, to Contract No. 05EA-110, Downtown Berkeley Plaza
Improvement Project with USS Cal Builders for an amount not to exceed $335,892.

DISCUSSION: The Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to award Contract No. 05EA-
110, BART Downtown Berkeley Plaza Improvement Project (“Contract”) to USS Cal Builders (“USS”)
on April 14, 2016 for the Contract price of $7,628,400. The original scope of work for this Contract
provides for the construction of the redesigned plaza at the Downtown Berkeley BART Station
(“Station”). Change Order No. 4(“C.0.#4”) is for the work required to re-commission the south entrance
of the Station to allow patrons to enter and exit through the south paid area of the Station. The Contractor
will install District-furnished Automatic Fare Collection “(AFC”) Equipment and fabricate and install a
glass fare barrier system around the south entrance station agent booth and fare gates. The work is
intended to improve circulation in the Station and reduce fare evasion.

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000 require Board
approval. The Procurement Department will review this Change Order prior to execution for compliance
with procurement guidelines. The Office of the General Counsel will approve the Change Order as to
form prior to execution.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $335,892 for the award of Change Order No. 4, South Entrance Fare Area Re-Opening,
Contract no 0SEA-110, is in included within the total project budget for FMS# 0SEA001 - Berkeley
Station Entrance & Plaza Improvements. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are
currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced
project and is included in totality to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to
meet this request will be expended from a combination of these sources as listed.

As of October 13,2016, $13,299,040 is available to the project from the following sources:



'Fund Source Group “ Amount }

| FTA Grant sources-Various Awards " 3,182,432 [
State Prop 1B & Local Area Grants 9,058,360
BART Operating allocation to Capital 1,058,248
Grand Total 13,299,040

BART has expended $3,110,842, committed $9,201,476, and reserved $0 to-date for other actions.
This action will commit $335,892 leaving an available fund balance of $650,830 in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES: If the Board does not authorize this change order, there would be a delay in
reactivating the fare gates at the south end of the Station, thus delaying improvements to circulation in the
Station and allowing continued fare evasion that might otherwise be deterred with the new AFC
Equipment.

RECOMMENDATION: Based on analysis by Staff, it is recommended that the Board adopt the
following Motion:

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 4, South Entrance Fare Area
Re-Opening, to Contract No. 05EA-110, Downtown Berkeley Plaza Improvement Project with USS Cal
Builders for an amount not to exceed $335,892.



CAPITOL CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Wednesday November 16, 2016

10 a.m.

Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority
Building B-106

3331 North First Street

San Jose, CA

(see attached map)

DRAFT AGENDA
I.  Callto Order
II.  Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
II.  Report of the Chair
IV. Consent Calendar

1. Minutes of the September 21, 2016 Meeting

2. CCJPA Board 2017 Meeting Schedule

3. 2016 Capitalized Maintenance Program

4. Budget Change Order — Vision Implementation Plan

V. Action and Discussion Items
Capitol Corridor Annual Performance Report (FY 2016)
Legislative Matters
Sacramento-Roseville 3" Track Project Mitigation Plan — Roseville Parking MOU
Connecting the Northern California Megaregion (Bay Area Economic Council Economic Institute)
Vision Implementation Plan
Vision Communications Plan — Initial Budget Authorization
Quarterly Status Report: Programmed Capital Projects and New Vehicles
Managing Director’s Report
Work Completed
a. CCJPA/Amtrak FY2017 Operating Agreement
b. State Rail Safety Month (September 2016)
c. Marketing Activities (September — October 2016)
10. Work in Progress
Oakland — San Jose Phase 2 Project
Station Signage and Platform Safety Upgrades
Proposition 1B Transit Safety/Security Improvement Projects
CCJPA Bike Access Program
On-Board Information System Project (OBIS)
Richmond Station Platform Improvements
Positive Train Control Update
Proposed Extension of Capitol Corridor Trains to Salinas
i. Upcoming Marketing Activities
VI. Board Member Reports
VII.  Public Comment
VIII.  Adjournment. Next Meeting Date: 10:00 a.m., February 15, 2017 at City Council Chambers,
Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., City of Suisun City, CA

WO B WD =

T o a0 ow

Notes:

Info
Action

Action
Action
Action
Discussion
Action
Action
Info

Info

Info

Info

Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item on this agenda. Please complete a "Request to Address the Board" form (available at the
entrance of the Boardroom and at a teleconference location, if applicable) and hand it to the Secretary or designated staff member before the item is considered
by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment. Speakers are limited

to three (3) minutes for any item or matter. The CCJPA Board reserves the right to take action on any agenda item.

Consent calendar items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion unless a request for discussion or explanation is received

from a CCJPA Board Director or from a member of the audience.

The CCIPA Board provides services/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities who wish to address Board matters. A request must be made

within one and five days in advance of a Board meeting, depending on the service requested. Call (510) 464-6085 for information.

AGENDA 16nov cover page DRAFT.docx 1









Clipper Update — Program Status I

Overview

 Clipper is available on 20 participating agencies,
available to 95% of all transit riders in the Bay Area.

e Since July 2009, Clipper has processed over 1.2 billion
transactions and has settled over $2.5 billion in revenue
for the region

« Clipper use continues to grow, with over 900,000 unique
users generating over 20M transactions each month

Office of Administration and Budget 1





Clipper Update — Program Status I
BART Transactions and Fares

- Fiscal Year 2016 Fiscal Year 2015

Clipper Magnetic Clipper Magnetic Clipper Magnetic
Transactions 62.5M 48.8M 57.3M 52.6M 5.2M (3.8M)

56.2% 43.8% 52.1% 47.9% 4.1% (4.1%)
Fares Collected $202.6M $201.3M $177.6M $210.4M $25.0M  ($9.1M)

50.2% 49.8% 45.8% 54.2% 4.4% (4.4%)

Includes weekends and holidays

Office of Administration and Budget )





Clipper Update — Program Status I

Revenue by Operator

m BART

B SFMTA (Muni)

H Caltrain

m AC Transit
Golden Gate Ferry
VTA

B Golden Gate Transit

m WETA (SF Bay Ferry)

m SamTrans

m East Bay Group

m Napa Solano

= Sonoma/101

u SFMTA Parking

August 2016

Office of Administration and Budget 3





Clipper Update — Program Status

Dispensing Clipper Cards at BART h]
Ticket Vending Machines (TVMs

Schedule Highlights:
o July 22, 2016 — Issued Notice to Proceed

 November 21 — 29, 2016 — Final Design Review
o April 25, 2017 — First 12 Units Delivered
o April 26, 2017 to July 2017 — BART Testing

o July 2017 — Units Available for Installation

Office of Administration and Budget 4





Next Generation Clipper (C2) — b

Planning for the Future

 The existing Clipper contract with Cubic expires November 2019

« 2013 MTC and transit agencies began planning for C2
= Current system limitations include:
= System architecture is from the late 90s
= Device components approaching end-of-life

= Layering in new technologies to integrate with the existing Clipper
system would likely be expensive and risky

« March 2015 MTC and transit agencies selected IBI Group to
provide Next Generation Clipper System Consultant Support:

» System design, development and testing and transition to a new fare
payment system and operations

* Implementation
» Transition

Office of Administration and Budget [






Next Generation Clipper (C2) — b

Highlights of 2015 MOU

Creation of an Executive Board comprised of nine members:

v BART v AC Transit v MTC
v" SFMTA v VTA ¥ 2 members to be selected by all
v Caltrain/SamTrans v GGBHTD RN i Rt ors

Responsible for:
» Designating the Contracting Agency (MTC is current Contracting Agency)
* Establishing program goals and performance measures

» Approving all business matters expected to have a substantial fiscal or operating impact on
the program

* Managing the current Clipper program, as well as the strategic planning effort to
procure and implement a future system

Modified cost allocation
e July 2016 — BART incurred credit and debit fees included in allocation formula

Office of Administration and Budget 6





Next Generation Clipper (C2) — b

Clipper Regional Partnership

Organization Structure

Executive Board
AC Tansit
BART
CCCTA
GGBHTD
MTC
SamTrans/Caltrain
SFMTA
VTA
WETA

Executive Director
Carol Kuester
MTC Director of Electronic Payments

Current Contracting Agency - MTC
Agency Representatives MTC Clipper Staff
Consultants

Contractors

Office of Administration and Budget 7





Next Generation Clipper (C2) — b

Key Customer Issues

 “Future of Clipper” public input (7,607 responses) noted:

* 60% dissatisfied with lack of real-time processing of value
adds

= 53% want to use online methods to resolve issues

» High interest in smartphones (75%) for reload, fare payment,
and account management

= Senior and disability community looking for greater access to
media and ways to link account with social service and other
databases

Office of Administration and Budget 8





Next Generation Clipper (C2) — b

Systems Integrator

« January 2016 Clipper Executive Board approved plan to
seek a Systems Integrator (Sl) to:

» QOperate the existing Clipper system

= Provide a next-generation system that meets pre-defined functional
requirements

= Manage the transition to the new system

* Request for Expressions of Interest

= April — July 2016 MTC released the RFEI to vendor population and
conducted vendor interviews

e Development of C2 Technical Package and Draft C2
System Integrator (SI) RFP for Industry Review
» August — January 2017 Develop and Release Draft C2 SI RFP

Office of Administration and Budget 9






Next Generation Clipper (C2) — I
System Requirements

o Capability for real-time value loading from Clipper website
and mobile devices

« Ease of adding new transit agencies and implementing
Clipper with third parties (e.g. bike share, parking, etc)

* Integration of mobile payments for fare payment

« Capability for agencies to modify configurations and fares

Office of Administration and Budget






Next Generation Clipper (C2) — b

System Requirement — Fare Media

e Smart Cards
= Extended Use
= Limited Use

 Financial industry payment cards and emerging payment
technologies

= Apple Pay
= Android Pay
= Other

« “Virtual media” and applications that can reside on:

= Customer smartphones,
= Wearables,

= Other customer-provided, web-enabled devices to allow customers to
purchase and pay fares

Office of Administration and Budget






Next Generation Clipper (C2) — I

Card-Based vs. Account-Based

Purpose:
« Understand both systems’ risks and benefits
« De-mystify jargon and hype from vendors

 Highlight appropriate applications for both
technologies

Office of Administration and Budget






Next Generation Clipper (C2) — I

Card-Based

Architecture
Value is stored on the fare media itself; card is the “account”
Validator determines correct fare
Updated value is written to the media
Transactions are recorded in real-time and stored locally
Advantages
» Proven solution for the transit industry (current Clipper system)
« Capable of full operation in off-line conditions
« Can have frequent account updates when paired with online operations
Disadvantages
» Business rule changes require updating thousands of field devices
» Less flexibility to add new transit agencies and third parties
« Limited availability for real time loading of value
» Fewer options for mobile integration

Office of Administration and Budget






Next Generation Clipper (C2) — I

Account-Based

Architecture
« Account, value and usage is maintained in the back office account
« Fare media serves only as an identifier for the account

» Pricing and business rule changes occur at the back office, as opposed to on
all field devices

» Less complexity for card and validator interaction
« Common in payment industry, relatively new to transit
Advantages
» All account data unified in a single location
» Greater flexibility to add new transit agencies and third parties
* Real-time or close to real-time account management & updates
» Better responds to customer needs
Disadvantages
« Validation can not occur in offline operations

Office of Administration and Budget






Next Generation Clipper (C2) — I:

Hybrid Solution?

Objectives Fulfilled:

Solutions for key customer issues

Immediate use of purchased value or pass
Solution for tourist market through mobile apps
Programming complexity moved to back office

Flexibility to accept other media types — “what’s in the
customers wallet”

Supports parking, bike share, paratransit

Office of Administration and Budget






Next Generation Clipper (C2) — I

IBI Recommendations

e Core of C2 be account based, but provide flexibility for
vendor to suggest ways they feel they could both best
meet needs and mitigate risks

= Per RFEI, industry heading in this direction

= Greater flexibility for the region to manage rules, add services, add
applications, support different customer markets

= More likely to be the supported platform in the future

= During normal, online operations performance should be able to be
maintained with reasonable (not perfect) communications networks

 Possible methods to address for offline operations:

= Positive-lists

= Negative-lists

» Risk-based fare determination engines

= Writing limited validation (not value) data to cards

Office of Administration and Budget






Next Generation Systems

throughout USA

CONTACTLESS SMART-CARD TRANSIT FARE PAYMENT SYSTEMS Lordon, UK
October 2016 - 2nd generation system
Vancouver, BC :(E::rpmrn:?t]guﬂgzm —
- 2nd generation system = Software: Tmnspglt!ur London
Seattle . (:-anj 1 Account Eased = Number of agencies: 1
ORCA U
= 1st generation system . - service: ic
) Er':egre:mrdn;mnt 2 ﬁl.mha' ofagml:'e::u:“ Montreal QC
2 Equ[rreflt ViX/ERG OPUS

= 1st generation system

= Equipment: GFI (bus), Xerox (rail)
= Software: GFI (bus), Xerox (rail)

= Number of agencies: 20

Toronto ON
Presto

i 5 i New York
= Equipment: ERG (now Cubic),
i it MetroCard
Cubic (BART), Cubic (SFMTA), + Under procurement

Philadelphia

SEPTA Key

= 2nd generation system

under development
Los Angeles * Equipment: Xerox
TAP - Software: Xerox
= 1st generation system with = Number of agencies: 1
updates

= Equipment: Cubic

= Software: Cubic

= Customer service: TAP
= Number of agencies: 23

= Equipment: Cubic

- Software: Cubic Miami

= Customer service: San Diego MTS Easy

= Number of agencies: 2 - 1st generation system
+ 2nd generation system

under development
= Equipment: Cubic
3 = Software: Cubic
= Customer service: Xerox * Number of agencies: 4

= Number of agencies: 1

Office of Administration and Budget







FEBRUARY, 2015

CONCEPTUAL PHOTO SIMULATION

CONCORD BART IMPROVEMENTS
CONCORD, CA





TO TODOS SANTOS
PLAZA & THE CENTRAL
BUSINESS DISTRICT

Class Il Bike

Lanes as

Proposed by
Pedestrian Lights
Single Banners along
Grant Street, TYP.
Bike Box and
Crossing

Stormwater Treatment

Crosswalk Improvements
Coordinated with City, TYP

Stormwater Treatment
o 15 30" 60"
——

SCALE: 1 INCH = 30 FEET

POTENTIAL PARKING TALLY

REMOVED 32
ADDED 27
DELTA -5
MOTORCYCLE

PARKING ADDED 5

POTENTIAL TREES TALLY

REMOVED
ADDED
NET GAIN

12
34
22

e

(E) PARKING LOT

4
%fﬁ

(RELOCATED) KISS N RIDE

(E) BUS STATION

LT g

150 LF
1.'

Pedestrian Lights with

Single Banners, TYP
(E) PARKING LOT

Pedestrian Lights with
Double Banners, TYP.

Decorative Crosswalks, TYP.

(E) BUS STATION

BART PARKING
STRUCTURE

A

KISSNRIDE ___ _ _
= ‘ _

OAKLAND AVE.

Stormwater
Treatment

Pedestrian Lights with
Single Banners, TYP.

New Pedestrian/Bike
Connection from

. Oakland Avenue
. aligns with

breezeway

Stormwater
Treatment
ANTIC ST.

Decorative
Crosswalk, TYP.

——
RESIDENTIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD







Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 06/30/16

» The District currently provides benefits to employees which include, but are not limited to:

Retirement Pension Plan managed by the California Public Employee Retirement System
(CALPERS), and funded by contributions from the District and it’s employees. CALPERS is
the largest pension plan in the United States with assets of approximately $S300 billion.

Retiree Medical Benefits coverage funded by a Trust established by the District in 2005.
The Trust as of June 30, 2016
a. Invested in a combination of stocks, bonds, REIT & cash,

b. Benchmark 6.75%,

c. Total net assets $237.4 million and inception to date return is 6.4%,

d. Quarterly Report to the Unions

Survivor Benefits of active and retired employees funded by the employees
(S15/month),

Life Insurance for retired employees which is currently unfunded but with a net required
OPEB contribution of $18.1 million as of June 30, 2016.

The District also accrues liabilities through Property & Casualty insurance and workers
compensation claims and maintains the required reserves related to its self-funded
insurance programs for worker’s compensation and general liability based on an annual
actuarial study.





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 06/30/16

Funding Summary of Pension, Retiree Health & Other Post-Employment Benefits

Market Value of Total Pension Unfunded Pension
Valuation Date Assets Liability Liability % Funded

Retirement Pension with CALPERS

Miscellaneous Employees 6/30/2015 $ 1,653,930,454 $ 2,063,048,906 S 409,118,452 80.2%

Safety Employees 6/30/2015 S 182,630,907 S 288,315,795 S 105,684,888 63.3%
Retiree Health Benefits 6/30/2015 S 221,765,847 S 333,141,399 S 111,375,552 66.6%
Other Post Employment Benefits

Life Insurance 6/30/2015 S - S 30,658,870 S 30,658,870 0.0%

Survivors Benefits Note A -------------mm---

Note A Actuarial valuation for this plan is currently being calculated.





Q m Q S € =M

120.0%

100.0%

80.0%

60.0%

40.0%

20.0%

0.0%

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 06/30/16

CALPERS Pension Plan Funding Progress

6/30/2008 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015

Valuation Date

==@==Miscellaneous
=fli—Safety





Q ® Q S ©€ =M

70.00%

60.00%

50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 06/30/16

Retiree Health Benefits Plan

L

//

e

e

=¢=% Funded

6/30/2008

6/30/2009

6/30/2010

6/30/2011 6/30/2012

Valuation Date

6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 06/30/16

Accounts Payable

>

Number of Voucher Paid in Percent

One goal is to pay 93% of our invoices within 30 days. We continue to keep our focus on getting our vendors paid
as quickly as possible. During the most recent quarter, the District was able to process 90.3% of all paid invoices
within 30 days. Of those that were not processed in 30 days, 8.5% were processed within 60 days, and 1.2% were
processed within 90 days. The trend depicting the past year is shown here:

Quarterly Number of Voucher Payment Trend
100% -/

90% -

80% -
70% -

60% 1 82270 90.3% ® 1-30 Days Paid Percent
50% - M 31-60 Days Paid Percent

B 61-90 Days Paid Percent
40% -
91+Days Paid Percent

30% -
20% -

10% - 6% y o
3.8% 3.5% 876
- 1.8% A
2016 Q1 h
Q 2016 Q2 2016 Q3 2016 Q4

Invoiced Fiscal Quarter





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 06/30/16

Accounts Receivable

»  The time to receive reimbursement funding from our funding partners is shown in the chart below. The amount
outstanding is $37,783,000 as of June 30, 2016

Amount Billed A/R Grants Outstanding as of 6/30/2016

25,000
$20,509
OTHERS, 13
— 20,000 FTA,
2 2,895
3
>
o
N
'_
£
Eo CALTRANS,
5 4,023
& 15,000
5
(@)
=
o
'_
$9,488
10,000 DTHERS, 694
$5,613
BDTHERS, 172
5,000

$1,149

OTHERS, 678

MTC, 62
CCTA, 409

$1.024

DTHERS, 729
CCTA, 295

01-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 121+ days






Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 06/30/16

3. DISTRICT FINANCES

The District continues to actively search for investments which meets the Investment Policy and generates a yield higher than
zero. There is not much available. As will be reflected in the next Quarterly Report, we have found some investments yielding an
incremental increase. These investments are in compliance with the District’s Investment Policy.

Cash and Investments

Total Cash in Banks: $191,422,298

Total CD Investments: $961,626

Total Government Securities: $424,246,000

Return on T-Bill Investments: Weighted average is .485% - Poor investment environment, but always looking. The weighted
average maturity (WAM) of our T-Bill Investment portfolio is 169 days.

Pie chart showing the difference in cash, cd investments and government securities

Y VVVY

M Cash In Bank

CD Investments

= Government Securities

FHDN
FHLB
FNMA
FFCB

* ¥ ¥ ¥

$961,626





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 06/30/16

Debt

» The District currently has two types of debt outstanding:
1. Sales Tax Revenue Debt
2. General Obligation Debt

Sales Tax Revenue Debt
» Currently outstanding debt of $629.6 million.
» Annual Debt Service $54.7 million.

» Debt Services comes “off the top” of sales tax revenues remitted to the district by the State
Board of Equalization.

» This directly impacts the operating budget.

General Obligation Bonds

These were passed by a 2/3 majority of eligible voters.
Currently outstanding debt of $603.5 million.

Issued $740 of $980 authorized.

Debt paid by annual assessment of BART property tax holders and does not impact the
operating budget.

Most recent assessment as of this current year is $2.60/$100,000

VV VY

A\





